[UNCLASSIFIED]

From: S9@)@)
Sent: Friday, 18 September 2020 4:23 pm @

To: Jo Hendy S 9(2)(a) @climatecommission.govt.nz>
Cc: @climatecommission.goyvt.nz>

Subject: Market Sensitive Price Information

[un:cmsu@@
HiJo,
Below is the link to the paper on marke

October’s Board meeting.

U |matecha o _\;\
WM - _climatecommission_govt _nz/ layouts/15/Doc.
EFOONATRCC

W climatecommission.govt.nz

[UNCLASSIFIED]



[UNCLASSIFIED]

From: Jo Hendy @climatecommission.govt.nz>
Sent: Monday, 28 September 2020 5:15 pm

To: @climatecommission.govt.nz>
Subject: Market Sensitive Price Information

This is looking good.

Also, | have changed it to updating

e
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Extract from the Crown Entities Act 2004
Section 62: When interests must be disclosed

(1) In this section, matter means—

(a) a statutory entity’s performance of its functions or exercise of its powers; or

(b) an arrangement, agreement, or contract made or entered into, or proposed to be entered into, by : % :@
the entity.

(2) A person is interested in a matter if he or she—

(a) may derive a financial benefit from the matter; or
(b) is the spouse, civil union partner, de facto partner, child, or parent of a person.wh
financial benefit from the matter; or

(c) may have a financial interest in a person to whom the matter relates; or %
(d) is a partner, director, officer, board member, or trustee of a persen avé a financial int
in a person to whom the matter relates; or

(e) may be interested in the matter because the entity’s Act so ides; jor

(f) is otherwise directly or indirectly interested in the n @

(3) However, a person is not interested i

f a wholly-owné -.
re other Cro titie

ity, insurance cov eration, or other benefits

(a) only because he or she is a me f the entity or of a

multi-parent subsidiary of the

o remote or insignificant'that n reasonably be regarded as likely to

g out his or respon ties under this Act or another Act; or

¢ S e has past orcurr involvement in the relevant sector, industry, or practice;
(d) if an entitys Act provides @ot interested, despite this section.

Section 66: Co % eing interested in matter
is i ested’in a matter relating to a statutory entity—

(c) is to be disregarded for the purpose of forming a quorum for that part of a meeting of the board or
committee during which a discussion or decision relating to the matter occurs or is made.




From: Jo Hendy

To: s 9(2)(a)

Subject: FW: [UNCLASSIFIED] Request to rename agenda item (“Market Sensitive Price Information Update*”)
Date: Friday, 2 October 2020 2:20:19 pm

Attachments: image001.png

Thanks s 9()(@) sounds good.

$ 9@ — | think $9()(& meant for you to be included in the email below

From:S 9(2)(a) @climatecommission.govt.nz>

Sent: Friday, 2 October 2020 1:43 pm

To: Jo Hendy S 9(2)(@) @climatecommission.govt.nz>

Subject: RE: [UNCLASSIFIED] Request to rename agenda item (“Market Sensitive e mation
Update*”) @

[UNCLASSIFIED] @ %
*% sent me an e- @

Thank you for the update. responde % viSe | renamed

the paper to:
‘Dealing with non-Public Information wh People"Have Persgl | ests’
y

| asked $%@@ she had any f . Hopefully this will deal with

that, but haven
her concern! | will sho ouand %@ the a@ as itreferences the paper you're doing
s92)(a) @
| hope tha@ oUneed anythi %Iea € let me know.
T % eers %

! @ [UNCLASSIFIED]
From:JiHégdy (&) @climatecommission.govt.nz>
1qay,
)(@)

Se r ober 2020 1:39 pm
climatecommission.govt.nz>; § 9(2)(a)

% @climatecommission.govt.nz>; § 9(2)(a)
@climatecommission.govt.nz>
ubject: RE: [UNCLASSIFIED] Request to rename agenda item (“Market Sensitive Price Information
Update*”)

His9(2)(a)

$9(2)@)

| just had a very productive conversation with on this.

s9(2)(@)

$9(2)(@) - On your paper, see s suggestion for renaming.

$9@@ _ On your information protocol’s paper, you should probably review $°@® previous paper on
information disclosure, which includes cabinet guidance as it relates to the ETS.



Happy to chat if anyone needs further context.

Thanks
Jo

From:S 9(2)(a) @climatecommission.govt.nz>

Sent: Friday, 2 October 2020 1:17 pm

To: Jo Hendy <S 9(2)(&) @climatecommission.govt.nz>

Subject: [UNCLASSIFIED] Request to rename agenda item (“Market SensitivedPric ion
Update*”)

Nga mihi
$9(2)(a) @
59(2)(a) ©

% [UNCLASSIFIED]

Hi there

| see on the agenda that there’s an item (#11) that is currently called “Market Sensitive Price
Information Update*”.

Am | right that this is about the topic of managing potential or perceived Board member conflicts
around NZUs holdings?

Can | just please make a request that this topic is renamed to a title that more accurately reflects
the content? E.g. “Update on managing potential or perceived conflicts of interest” or “Avoiding



perceptions of insider trading” or something like that.

The reason is that there’s been a lot of confusion about what this issue is, and continuing to label it
this way won’t help with that. The issue that is more appropriately labelled as being about market
sensitive information is around how the Commission releases or talks about its advice, so that it
doesn’t disrupt the carbon market.

Thanks

$9(2)@)

[UNCLASSIFIED]

From:S 9(2)(a) @climatecommission.govt.nz> %@

Sent: Thursday, 1 October 2020 12:23 pm
To: Jo Hendy S 9(2)(@) @climatecommission.govt.nz>; S 9(2)(a)

@climatecommission.govt.nz>; § 9(2)(a) ; ; -
@climatecommission.govt.nz>; § 9(2)(a)
@climatecommission.govt.nz>; § 9( @

Cc:s 9(2)(a)
Subject: Draft Agend

USS

i
Kia ora ev %
H o this month’s%ﬁ genda -

e atechaneshare t.com/:w:/r/sites/BoardMeetings/Shared%20Documents/2020-

EED.

0020-%20 ClranfereRce Agendas/Agenda%20-
ommission%ZOBoard%ZOMeetin%2013%20—
%201422020.docx?
d= 4a1686a78214155c0078&csf=1&web=1&e=P| YY1

—

d\you please ensure that | have the correct time duration, attendees, presenters and note-
rs.

Much appreciated.
Nga mihi
$92)(a)

s 9(2)(a)

Ms 9(2)(a)






[UNCLASSIFIED]
From: S9(2)(@)
Sent: Monday, 5 October 2020 12:30 pm
To: Rod Carr <Roderick.Carr@climatecommission.govt.nz>

C:s9@)@  @climatecommission.govt.nz>y
N . . \/
s9()@ @climatecommission.govt.nz> %
'\ O

Here Peopl

A

7 It follows on from papers
ontext of people holding New

Subject: Draft Board Paper: Dealing with Non-Public Ipfo

Kia ora Rod, @
his month’s Boa
sitivegrice informat

\&ﬂ information release more generally which should also be

:F

W climatecommission.govt.nz

[UNCLASSIFIED]
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In January 2020, the Board requested S 9(2)(h)

In March 2020, the Board was provided further advice in a paper titled Treatment of Market
Sensitive Information. That paper largely focused on the release of market sensitive
information and recommended, as good practice, that the Commission follow the guidance
outlined in Cabinet Office Circular CO(12)7 Guidelines for Dealing with Inside Information
about Public Issuers.

11



3.

4.

5.

s 9(2)(h)

s 9(2)(h)

s 9(2)(h) R&

This paper does not consider the release of information to the public. Angtheprelated paper
considering protocols around the release of information is also ihcluded in’this month’s
Board pack.

Background

6.

The Commission has a conflict of intereSt.policy which outlines the typés‘of situations where
professional and personal interests oveclap, Since the policy Was developed, the Office of
the Auditor General (OAG) released\guidance for publig’sectokéntities on managing conflicts
of interests. There are sefme important messagesin OAG!s\guidelines to be aware of
including:

e There is a byoad\range of circumstances‘\wherepeople involved in public sector
organisations have\professional arld’personal interests that overlap. These extend
beyondiintereststhat peopleheld\themsglves to also include close business and
petrsgnal rélationships.

o\ Thereare various situations-eften; but not always, involving financial conflicts where
theré are legal restrictigns'on what people can and can’t do.

o> Having clear and robust-processes for determining, managing and disclosing conflicts is
important;

This highlights Sefne’gaps in our existing conflicts of interest policy which will need to be

updated. Q@)(h)
DN

Discussion

3.

10.

11.

It is not uncommon for people to have personal interests that intersect with their
professional interests. That does not necessarily mean there is a conflict of interest.
However, there may be situations where Commissioners or staff are aware of information or
advice that isn’t in the public domain that touch upon their personal interests. This could
create an actual or perceived conflict of interest.

As noted above, the Board considered a paper in March 2020 recommending how the
Commission should treat market sensitive price information and there is a further paper for
your consideration in this month’s Board pack which discusses information disclosure.

This paper does not consider whether or when information or advice should be released but
instead what possession of it means ahead of any release. 9(2)(h)

12



—

12. The Commission, as a Crown Entity, is subject to certain legal requirements about interests
that go beyond ‘guidance’ to instead mandate actions. These are outlined in the Crown
Entities Act. This Act (extract attached) prohibits people who have certain interests from

participating in discussions, making decisions or forming a quorum on matters relating to
that interest.

Action sought
The Board is asked to:

Date actio("‘@qdjw
\>\)

13



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

(b) an arrangement, agreement, or contract made or entered into, or proposed to be entered into,
by the entity.

(2) A person is interested in a matter if he or she—

(a) may derive a financial benefit from the matter; or

(b) is the spouse, civil union partner, de facto partner, child, or parent of &’ pérsaniwhe’may derive.a
financial benefit from the matter; or

(c) may have a financial interest in a person to whom the matter ¥elates; or

(d) is a partner, director, officer, board member, or trustee of @ person who may have afinaneial
interest in a person to whom the matter relates; or

(e) may be interested in the matter because the entity/s\Act/50 provides; or

(f) is otherwise directly or indirectly interestedhin the.magteér.

(3) However, a person is not interéstechin a matter—

(a) only because he or she is &membef.or an officer&fawhally-owned subsidiary of the entity or of
a multi-parent subsidiafy of the\entity and 1 or,mare sthérCrown entities; or

(b) because he or shereceivés an indemnityyinsuranceé cover, remuneration, or other benefits
authorised yndeér this’Astor another Act;\or

(c) if hiscor hex iterest is so remote orinsignificant that it cannot reasonably be regarded as likely to
influérice\hicnerher in carrying aut his.or-her responsibilities under this Act or another Act; or

(ca) only because he or she‘has past.or current involvement in the relevant sector, industry, or
practice; or
(apif an entity’ssActproVides that he or she is not interested, despite this section.

Section-66:\ Consequences of being interested in matter
Ameémber who is interested in a matter relating to a statutory entity—

(d) must not vote or take part in any discussion or decision of the board or any committee relating to
the matter, or otherwise participate in any activity of the entity that relates to the matter; and

(b) must not sign any document relating to the entry into a transaction or the initiation of the matter;
and

(c) is to be disregarded for the purpose of forming a quorum for that part of a meeting of the board or
committee during which a discussion or decision relating to the matter occurs or is made.

14



[UNCLASSIFIED]
From: Rod Carr <Roderick.Carr@climatecommission.govt.nz>
Sent: Thursday, 5 November 2020 3:51 pm @

To:s9()@  @climatecommission.govt.nz> &

Cc: Jo Hendy_@climatecommission.govt.nz>; %

_@climatecommission.govt.nz>;
s9()(@  @climatecommission.govt.nz>

Subject: Re: [UNCLASSIFIED] Fonterra Election U

Ag©

$9(2)(@  @climatecommission.govt.nz>;

Thanks for the heads up.
Rod

From:
Sent: Thursday,
To: Rod Carr

[UNCLASSIFIED]

O\

"t know whether you’ve seen the Fonterra election results but Nicola has not been elected
to the Fonterra Board. An extract of the announcement is below:

“Tuesday, 3 November, 2020 - 15:03
Returning Officer Warwick Lampp, of electionz.com Ltd, has declared the final results of the 2020 elections for

the Fonterra Board of Directors, Directors’ Remuneration Committee and Shareholders’ Council.

Shareholders voted to elect incumbent Director Brent Goldsack and new Director Cathy Quinn to the Fonterra

Board.”

Those appointees are due to take office at today’s AGM. Irrespective of this result I've been in
contact with the Public Service Commission to organise a time for you to talk to them about

15



guidance for handling this type of situation, should it arise again. I’'m waiting to hear back from
them and will work with $%@® to get something in your diary.

In the meantime | hope this helps.

Thanks

W climatecommission.govt.nz

m@@’% ©®

16



WITHHELD IN FULL
Document 6 and Attachments 6a, 66 and 6¢ are withheld in full: 9(2)(h)
Document 7 is withheld in full: 9(2)(h), 9(2)(a), out of scope
Document 8 and Attachment 8a are withheld in full: 9(2)(h)
Document 9 is withheld in full: 9(2)(h)

Document 10 is withheld in full: 9(2)(h)

Document 11 and Attachment //a are withheld in full: 9(2)(h) &®@
Document 12 and Attachment /2a are withheld in full: 9(2)(h) @

Document 13 and Attachment /3a are withheld in full; @
Document 14 and Attachment /4a are withhel@ @
Document 15 is withheld in full: 9(2)(h)

Document 16 is withheld in %’ @@
& %®

17



[UNCLASSIFIED] @
From: Rod Carr <Roderick.Carr@climatecommission.govt.nz>
Sent: Saturday, 19 December 2020 7:33 pm %

To: @climatecommission.govt.nz>
Subject: Re: [UNCLASSIFIED] Disclosure of Commissioners' Interests to
Noted.thanks.

Rod

From: —@cu.matecom&\s.\\}b nz>

Sent: Friday, December 18, 2020 4:35:55 P
To:
Cc: Rod Carr <Roderick.Carr@clima com . .nz>; ;

Subject: [UNCLASSIFIED] Di St the Minister

Kia ora

| will keep you updated on progress but wanted to make sure you were aware of this piece of work prior to any
notification to the Minister. In the meantime, if you have any questions please let me know.

Thank you. Nga mihi

W climatecommission.govt.nz

18



WITHHELD IN FULL
Document 18 and Attachment /8a are withheld in full: 9(2)(h)
Document 19 is withheld in full: 9(2)(h), out of scope

Document 20 and Attachment 20a are withheld in full: 9(2)(h), 9(2)(a)

19
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[UNCLASSIFIED]
From: Rod Carr <Roderick.Carr@climatecommission.govt.nz> %

Sent: Wednesday, 23 December 2020 7:15 pm
Cc: Rod Carr <Roderick.Carr@climatecommission.govt.nz>; Jo . i ecom n.govt.nz>;

@parliament.govt.nz>
Subject: Climate Change Commission - Interests

Kia ora James,

o the disclosure of interests held by the
Commission.

Please find attached the Climate C

Rod @t < : %
r Roderick Carr | Chair

%; ; Climate Change Commission Board
mo@@
% E roderick.carr@climatecommission.govt.nz

W climatecommission.govt.nz
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23 December 2020

Hon James Shaw

Minister for Climate Change
Parliament Buildings
Wellington

Téna koe James
CLIMATE CHANGE COMMISSION - INTERESTS OF BOARD'MEMBERS

1. It has come to the attention of the Board d¢f the-Climaté Change Cetamissign\(the Board) that there
have inadvertently been some areas, of \nonscomptiance with grevisions\of the Crown Entities Act
2004 (Crown Entities Act) with respect to managing the\ interests,of the Commission’s Board
members (the Commissioners);

2. The Commission is currentlyfinalising draft Emissions Budget advice (the advice).

3. As the Ministerwill-be-aware, the Commissioneks‘have been appointed to the Commission due to
their various areas ofexpertise relatéd’to\climate change mitigation and adaptation and continue to
hold roles within‘their fields. Accordihgly, it was inevitable that there would be some areas where
thelpersonalintérests of Commissioners-overlap with the Commission’s work. On appointment, and
@h . anongoing basis, extensive disclosures have been made of the Commissioners’ various interests
in thexCommission’sinternal Interests Register (the Interests Register).

4, Notwithstanding\these extensive disclosures, in the last week, the Commission has become aware
that thefe-has\been partial non-compliance with the prescriptive requirements of the Crown Entities
Act.(The Commission now accordingly notifies the Minister of that non-compliance in accordance
Wwith its‘obligations under s 67 of the Crown Entities Act.

5. The Commission notes that any non-compliance with the Crown Entities Act does not impact on the
validity of the advice currently being prepared pursuant to s 67(2) of the Crown Entities Act.

6- The purpose of this letter is to:

6.1 With respect to New Zealand Units (NZUs) held directly or indirectly by the Chair, Deputy
Chair and Commissioner Shadbolt and/or their family members:

(a) disclose to you interests held by the Chair, Deputy Chair and Commissioner Shadbolt

in matters relating to the advice currently being prepared by the Commission, in
accordance with s 63 of the Crown Entities Act;

23



(b) notify you of the Commission’s partial non-compliance with ss 63 and 66 of the
Crown Entities Act in relation to these interests, in accordance with s 67(1) of the Act;
and

(c) seek your permission for the Chair, Deputy Chair and Commissioner Shadbolt to
continue their work on the Commission’s current advice, notwithstanding these
interests, in accordance with s 68 of the Act.

6.2 With respect to other interests held by Commissioners that relate to current advice being
prepared by the Commission:

(a) notify you of the Commission’s non-compliance with s 66 of the Crown Entities Act,
in accordance with s 67(1) of the Act.

New Zealand Units held by the Chair, Deputy Chair and Commissioner Shadbolt

Disclosure of interests

7.

Pursuant to s 63(1) of the Crown Entities Act, the commissioners.arerequired to disclese any interest
they have in a matter relating to the Commission_as_soef~as\practicable after~the.temmissioner
becomes aware that he or she is interested.

Section 62 of the Crown Entities Act provides_that\a\eommissionewill have\an interest where the
commissioner:

8.1 May derive a financialbenefit freamthe Commission'syerformance of its functions or exercise
of its powers or amarrangement, agreement, ‘okeontract made or entered into, or proposed
to be entered.inte, by the . €ommission.

8.2 Is thesspouse;Tjvil ‘Gnion partner, de facto-partner, child, or parent of a person who may
derive\a finangidl benefit frootthe\Commission’s performance of its functions or exercise of
itsypowefs or an arrangement,\agreement, or contract made or entered into, or proposed to
be entered into, bycthe Commission.

8.3 May have a‘financial ioterest in a person to whom the Commission’s performance of its
functions, or_exereise of its powers or an arrangement, agreement, or contract made or
entered intg,-obproposed to be entered into, by the Commission relates.

8.4 Is\a parntrer, director, officer, board member, or trustee of a person who may have a financial
interest in a person to whom the Commission’s performance of its functions or exercise of
itS powers or an arrangement, agreement, or contract made or entered into, or proposed to
be entered into, by the Commission relates.

8.5 May be interested in the matter because the Commission’s Act so provides.
8.6 Is otherwise directly or indirectly interested in the matter.

Section 64(1) of the Crown Entities Act provides that the disclosure of an interest must be made by
doing the following:

9.1 disclosing details of the interest in an interests register kept by the Commission; and

9.2 disclosing the details of the interest to chairperson, the deputy chairperson or, where the
chairperson and the deputy chairperson are both interested, the Minister.

24



10. Accordingly, this letter is intended to provide disclosure to you of the following interests in matters
relating to the Commission held by the Chair, Deputy Chair and Commissioner Shadbolt:

10.1

10.2

10.3

Dr Roderick Carr, Chair

(a)

(b)

Waingawa Land Company. Dr Carr has an interest in NZUs via a farm forestry venture
partnership called the Waingawa Land Company. Dr Carr holds 64 percent of the
Company, while his wife holds 11 percent. S 9(2)(a)

The Company holds
a pre-1990 plantation that has been awarded  'NZUs. Since the time that the
Company was awarded the NZUs, it has neither acquired nor divested any NZUs and
there is no current intention to acquire or divest any units or to harvest the trees. At
this time, each NZU held by the Company has a value of apprexirately $37. Taken
together,??** " NzUs have a value of approximatelyg(z)(j&WWDr Carr’s personal
interest is approximately™ " "and the combined interestheld jo-Dr Carr’s nafé
and his wife’s name is approximately’™®®**@®®

Dr Carr’s brother also holds NZUs although Br<Canr has no awarenessof or fipanhcial
interest in these Units.

Ms Lisa Tumahai, Deputy Chair

(a)

Te Rinanga o Ngai Tahu~Ms'Tumahai“is the Kaiwhakahaere\(€hair) of Te Rinanga o
Ngai Tahu. Te Rinanga o NgaiTahu has an interestiin the following NZUs:

s 9(2)(b)(ii) éNZUs held’by Ngai Tahu Farestey btd; and

i \
S 9(2)%'(® ‘NZUs held by Oha Hohey Lktd Partnership.

ProfesSor Nicola Shadbolt, Copmmissioner

(@

()

(c)

Pohangina Land.Campafy (No. 1) Ltd. Professor Shadbolt is a managing director of
Pohangina fand‘Cempany (No. 1) Ld. In addition, Professor Shadbolt is a trustee and
beneficiary of two\family trusts which hold jointly a 20 percent shareholding in the
Company. The\€ompany owns approximately 70 hectares of forest plantings. All
farest plantings have had NZUs claimed and trees are continuously being planted and

9(2)(2) & 9(2)(b)(ii)

felleds.At present, the Company holds approximately NZUs.

lronsand Forests Ltd. Professor Shadbolt is a managing director and shareholder
(with a 5 percent interest) of a company called Ironsand Forests Ltd. Professor
Shadbolt’s husband is also a shareholder with a 5 percent share in the Company. The
Company owns approximately 75 percent of a post-1989 forest. This forest is due to
be harvested in 2021. The Company has claimed NZUs and sold some NZUs. NZUs
will shortly be repurchased in preparation for harvest. At present, the Company holds

9(2)(2) &9(2)(b)(1)

approximately NZUs.

Cape Horn Land Company Ltd. Professor Shadbolt is a managing director of Cape
Horn Land Company Ltd. In addition, Professor Shadbolt is a trustee and beneficiary
of two family trusts which hold jointly a 10 percent shareholding in the Company. At

present, the Company holds approximatelyg(zl(a)&(b)(")NZUs.

25



11.

These financial interests overlap directly with the advice currently being prepared by the
Commission. This is because the advice will include advice relating to the Emissions Trading Scheme
settings. Accordingly, the fact that the Chair, Deputy Chair and Commissioner Shadbolt and/or their
family members directly or indirectly hold NZUs means that these Commissioners have an interest in
a matter relating to the Commission for the purposes of s 62 of the Crown Entities Act.

Notification of non-compliance with ss 63 and 66 of the Act

12.

This letter is also intended to serve as notification to you, for the purposes of s 67 of the Crown
Entities Act, of the Commission’s partial non-compliance with ss 63 and 66 of the Act in relation to
the Chair, Deputy Chair and Commissioner Shadbolt’s interests in NZUs.

Non-compliance with s 63

13.

14.

15.

Interests of the Chair

13.1

13.2

The fact that the Chair and the Chair’s brother directly or indirectly held NZUs was disclosed
in the Commission’s internal Interests Register (theAnterests Register) for the purposes of
s 63 prior to the Commission beginning work onfAts\current advice. Thefefere,\there was
partial compliance with s 63 with respect to these'interests.

However, in accordance with s 64 of theMAct,\given that this isan\instahce’in which both the
Chair and the Deputy Chair were interested) thé Chair’s intérésts should have been disclosed
to you as the responsible Mipisterat the time work was hegun on the current advice in order
to achieve full compliance with sectign 63. This washat dorme;and in this way the Commission
has not strictly complied.with the-obligations,ef.s 63\

Interests of the Deputy\Chaijr

14.1

It wasdisclosed)in the InterestsyRegister that the Deputy Chair is the Kaiwhakahaere (Chair)
of Te Ripangao Ngai Tahu; apd)that'Te Rinanga o Ngai Tahu have a range of business
interests\that could potentialli be impacted by the work of the Commission. However, the
fagt\Mthat Te Rinanga “\o\Ngai)Tahu directly or indirectly held NZUs was not specifically
distlosed in the Interests\Register or to the Minister at the time work began on the current
advice. In this way, there was non-compliance with s 63.

Interests of Camimissianer Shadbolt

15.X

15.2

The fagt'that Commissioner Shadbolt directly or indirectly held NZUs through Pohangina Land
Company (No. 1) Ltd and Ironsand Forests Ltd was disclosed in the Interests Register for the
purposes of s 63 prior to the Commission beginning work on its current advice. Therefore,
there was partial compliance with s 63 with respect to these interests. However, these
interests were not disclosed to the Minister in accordance with s 64 of the Act. In this way
the Commission has not strictly complied with the obligations of s 63 with respect to these
interests.

It was disclosed in the Interests Register that Commissioner Shadbolt was a Managing
Director of Cape Horn Land Company Ltd and that the family trusts were a shareholder.
However, the fact that the Company held NZUs was not specifically disclosed in the Interests
Register or to the Minister prior to the Commission beginning work on its current advice.
Accordingly, with respect to this interest, there was non-compliance with s 63.
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Non-compliance with s 66

16.

17.

18.

Section 66 of the Crown Entities Act with respect to the Chair, Deputy Chair and Commissioner
Shadbolt’s interests in NZUs.

That provision provides that where a member is interested in a matter relating to the Commission,
they:

17.1  must not vote or take part in any discussion or decision of the board or any committee
relating to the matter, or otherwise participate in any activity of the entity that relates to the
matter;

17.2  must not sign any document relating to the entry into a transaction or.the initiation of the
matter; and

17.3  are to be disregarded for the purpose of forming a quorum for¢hat part\of a meeting of the
board or committee during which a discussion or decision relating to\the matter occuts ox.is

made.

In working on the advice currently being prepared by-the\Cammission, the regdirements-efs 66 have
not been complied with. In particular, the Chair,{Députy\Chaif and Commissioneh Shadbolt have all
taken part in the decision-making with respect to\the advice cupréntly\being prepared by the
Commission, which will include advice with\respeet\fo’Emissions Trading Scheme settings.

Effect of non-compliance with the requirements. of)ss 63 and 66

19.

We wish to emphasise that, ‘pursuant to s 67(2) of-the Erown Entities Act, non-compliance with the
requirements of ss 63 and’66 will'hot affect the Yalidity of the advice currently being produced by
the Commission.!

Permission soughtfor\CommisSioners to act

20.

21.

22,

Pursuant t0\s68 of the Crawn\EntitiesyAct, the Commission is now seeking your permission for the
Chair)Deputy Chair and Cogiissioner Shadbolt to continue their work on the current advice,
hotwithstanding theix interestsvih NZUs.

That provisioh providesthat permission may be granted to one or more members of the Board, or
membefy Witk ‘g ‘specified class of interests, to do any of the acts otherwise prohibited by s 66
(outlined aboye'at paragraph [12]) if satisfied that it is in the public interest to do so. Where both the
Chlair andthe Deputy Chair are interested, this permission must be given by the Minister.

Accotdingly, the Commission now seeks permission from you for the Chair, Deputy Chair and
Commissioner Shadbolt to continue their work on the Commission’s current advice notwithstanding
their interests outlined above. This permission is necessary because there is still further decision-
making to be undertaken by the Board with respect to the advice currently being prepared.

Section 67(2) does not however limit the right of any person to apply, in accordance with law, for judicial
review: Crown Entities Act 2004, s 67(3).
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23.

24,

In the Commission’s view, it is in the public interest for such permission to be granted:

23.1 The Commission’s role in providing independent, expert advice to the government on
mitigating climate change and adapting to the effects of climate change, as well as
monitoring and reviewing the Government’s progress towards its emissions reduction and
adaptation goals, is of significant public importance and interest.?

23.2  The advice currently being drafted by the Commission, which will provide recommendations
to the government on a wide range of issues relating to mitigation, adaptation and emissions
reduction, is well-advanced and will soon be released for consultation.

23.3 Recommendations with respect to limits and price control settings for NZUs form just one
part of that advice.

23.4  In order to ensure that the Commission is able to issue draft adyice as planh€d in Februafy
2021, it is critical that the Commission’s work on the cuprént advice ‘is' able to continue
without interruption.

23.5  Significant disruption to the Commission’s work-programme will result if¢he-Chair, Deputy
Chair and/or Commissioner Shadbolt are unable\to’eontinue working.on_the current advice.

We also note that, pursuant to s 68(6) of the Grown\Entities Act, anypermissien’granted by you in
accordance with this request must be disclosed by the'Commissiorinits annual report.

Other interests held by Commissioners

25.

26.

27,

28.

As is required by s 67(1) of the Crown Entities Act,-this\ettek is“also intended to advise you of non-
compliance by the Camnission with s 66 of the{Cfown Entitiés Act in relation to other interests held
by Catherine Leining and Br Marry Clark,/both\ Eotmmissioners. The details of these interests are
provided in ag’appendix to this letter,

No issue ‘of>compliance with s 63 \arises with respect to these interests. The interests were all
disclosed\invthe Interests Register and“to the Chair or Deputy Chair (as required), fulfilling the
reguiremeénts of s 63.

However, it tranSpires that'$66 was not complied with in respect to these interests. The Chair and/or
Deputy Chair\(as, reguited) were aware of the existence of these interests and considered that in
respect/of each'disclosed interest, the interest was sufficiently distinct from the development of the
draf advice sughthat it was appropriate for the Commissioners to continue their work and no further
action\was-necessary. Accordingly, each of the Commissioners continued to work on the advice
curfently” being prepared. However, the proper process required by s 66 was not followed. In
particular, written permission to act despite being interested was not granted by the Chair or the
Deputy Chair (s 68 of the Crown Entities Act).

It is important to emphasise, as above, that this non-compliance with the requirements of s 66 will
not affect the validity of the advice currently being prepared by the Commission (s 67(1), Crown
Entities Act).

See s 5B of the Climate Change Response Act.
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Next steps

29.

The Chair and Deputy Chair are now working through the necessary processes with respect to each
of the interests held by the Commissioners identified in the appendix to this letter, including a
determination of whether it is appropriate to grant permission to the Commissioners to continue
working on the advice, notwithstanding their various interests. This work is being done as a matter
of priority and will be completed prior to release of the draft advice.

Future approach to managing interests

30.

31.

The Climate Change Commission apologises unreservedly for the non-compliance outlined above.
The Commission is committed to managing all issues relating to interests if\ accordance with the
requirements of the Crown Entities Act and in the spirit of transparencys, The\Corinission is alse
acutely aware that proper management of any issues relating to interests‘isvitalto ensuringpublig
confidence in the Commission’s work.

The Commission wishes to reassure you that steps are b€ing taken to prevent againstsimilar'issues
in the future. Most significantly, the Commission is_curreritly inthe process of draftiog-aw’ updated
Interests Policy, which will comprehensively cover “the\dbligations of ¢commissioners and the
appropriate processes to be followed with.respect\to’ the management ‘of.intérests. As part of
implementing that policy initially and forigitiating new pieces of adviCe in thefuture, Commissioners
will be asked to review their interests to\identify whether any\may.oveclap with that advice. If so,
steps will be taken to manage any\cenfli¢cts as needed., \To, €nsure we fully comply with the
requirements of the Crown Entities Act we will docuptent both\the consideration of these interests
and any actions taken< -This\ process is in addition\te_the” Commission’s existing practice of
Commissioners updating ‘their\intérests as they change\and being asked at the beginning of each
meeting to declare anyconflicts of interest with\items on the agenda.

Recommendations

32.

The\recommeéridations are €hatyouw:

(2a) note that, with respeéct to the NZUs held directly or indirectly by the Chair,
DeputyrChainarid’Commissioner Shadbolt and/or their family members, it
has‘beendisclosed to you in accordance with s 63 of the Crown Entities Act
that\these Commissioners have interests in the advice currently being
prepared by the Commission;

(b) © note that, with respect to the NZUs held directly or indirectly by the Chair,
Deputy Chair and Commissioner Shadbolt and/or their family members,
the Commission has notified you in accordance with s 67(1) of the Crown
Entities Act, of its non-compliance with ss 63 and 66 of the Act;

(c) note that, with respect to interests in the advice currently being prepared
by the Commission held by Catherine Leining and Dr Harry Clark, the
Commission has notified you, in accordance with s 67(1) of the Crown
Entities Act, of its non-compliance with s 66 of the Act; and
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(d) agree to grant permission for the Chair, Deputy Chair and Commissioner Yes / No
Shadbolt to continue their work on the Commission’s current advice,
notwithstanding their interests described above at (a), in accordance with
s 68 of the Act.

Chair - Climate Change Commission @ A

o S Shange ’
F=0”
@@§

%
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[UNCLASSIFIED]

[UNCLASSIFIED] @ ; @

From: Rod Carr <Roderick.Carr@climatecommission.govt.nz>
Sent: Friday, 15 January 2021 12:28 pm

To: @climatecommission.govt.nz>;
@climatecommission.govt.nz>; @clima ion-govt.nz>

Subject: Letter to go in board papers. § v %
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From: S9(2)@)

Sent: Wednesday, 20 January 2021 11:28 am
To: Rod Carr <Roderick.Carr@climatecommission.govt.nz>

Cc: Jo Hend @climatecommission.govt.nz>;
@climatecommission.govt.nz>;

Subject: Interests Register - Professor James Renwick

[UNCLASSIFIED] @ ; @

@c '@55|0n.govt.nz>

FIED]

the items he disclosed yesterday. | will send
om them.

U
Kia ora Rod, @
Please find attached the updat % ister for Jarr
e

through those from the other rs once | hea

Thanks @

@; ; W climatecommission.govt.nz
% ?’ [UNCLASSIFIED]

40









[UNCLASSIFIED]

[UNCLASSIFIED] @
From: S9(2)@) %

Sent: Wednesday, 20 January 2021 10:18 am
To: Rod Carr <Roderick.Carr@climatecommission.govt.nz>

Cc: @climatecommission.govt.nz>;
@climatecommission.govt.nz>

Subject: Interests Register

A

the updates that were provided to
now up to date or, if not, what changes are

Kia ora Rod,

Please find attached the Interests

Minister Shaw prior to Christm 3
needed?
s

| appreciate your h

Nga mihi

%@% W climatecommission.govt.nz

[UNCLASSIFIED]
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Sent: Wednesday, 20 January 2021 1:48 pm
To: Rod Carr <Roderick.Carr@climatecommission.govt.nz>

Cc: Jo Hendy @climatecommission.govt.nz>;
@climatecommission.govt.nz>;

Subject: Interests Register Update - Dr Judy Lawrence

[UNCLASSIFIED] @ @
From: 9@ %

Kia ora Rod,

Please find attached the updat

Thanks 3 %

climatecommission.govt.nz

%@% [UNCLASSIFIED]
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Understanding and presenting the views of stakeholders in the voluntary offsetting market is an important part of
the advice. Decisions taken on offsetting in the Carbon Neutral Government Programme will unavoidably send
signals and set precedent.

As a stakeholder who has knowledge in this area, MfE would like to invite you to participate in expert-level
stakeholder workshops, with a small number of participants, facilitated by MfE. The purpose of the workshops are
to seek a stakeholder view, individually or as a group where consensus can be achieved, on voluntary offsetting and
mitigation options.

It is anticipated that there will be two workshops occurring between February and April. Dates will be advised once
invited participants have been confirmed.
Please note:

1. Participation in these workshops is voluntary and your time will not be paid.
2. The workshops will not follow Chatham House rules as we will need to provi t ntext to 5 t
understand any feedback.
orksh by COB Wednesd
act me or%@(@

Please respond to this email to register your interest in participating in thes
January. Alternatively, if you have any further questions about this, p

9(2)(a) @mfe.govt.nz).
Kind regards, @ @
9(2)(a)

Ministry for the Environment — Manata Mo Te Taiao
Email9(2)(a) Website:www.mfe:govt.
23 Kate Sheppard Place, PO Box 10362, Wellirigtor

Please Note: The information contained in this e-mail message and any attached files may be confid*ential information, and may also be the
subject of legal professional privilege. It is not necessarily the official view of the Ministry for the Environment. If you are not the intended recipient,
any use, disclosure or copying of this e-mail is unauthorised. If you have received this e-mail in error, please notify us immediately by reply e-mail
and delete the original. Thank you.
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[UNCLASSIFIED] @
From SS2)E)
Sent: Friday, 29 January 2021 10:02 pm
To: Rod Carr <Roderick.Carr@climatecommission.govt.nz>
Cc: Jo Hendy S 9(2)(@)  @climatecommission.govt.nz>
Subject: Re: [UNCLASSIFIED] Update on QUtOfScope & |nterests Wor@

Hi Rod,

Thanks

on 29/01/2
%he Minister’s office on the pre Christmas letter? Would be good to know he has
before 2pm Sunday.

©

From: Rod Carr <Roderick.Carr@climatecommission.govt.nz>

Sent: Thursday, January 28, 2021 11:39 PM

To:S9R)@)

Cc: Jo Hendy

Subject: Re: [UNCLASSIFIED] Update on @ut OfScope g |nterests Work

Thanks 8 9(2)(@ Will be in the office tomorrow.
Rod
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From:s9(2)(@  climatecommission.govt.nz>
Sent: Thursday, January 28, 2021 9:42:11 PM

To: Rod Carr <Roderick.Carr@climatecommission.govt.nz>

Cc: Jo Hendy S 9(2)(@)  @climatecommission.govt.nz>

Subject: [UNCLASSIFIED] Update on QUtOfSCope g |nterests Work

[UNCLASSIFIED]

Hi Rod,

Just a quick update on the QUtOFSCOPE and interests work as | know these are things you are
expecting:

Interests ~ Q&V | ﬁ%\v

“Inthe’meantime | will follow up with the Minister’s office on the letter we sent before Christmas
“N" eed his approval on the interests contained in that letter.

ope this helps. Please let me know if there is anything else you need.

Thanks

<image003.png>

MB@)@

W climatecommission.govt.nz

[UNCLASSIFIED]
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[UNCLASSIFIED] @
From: Rod Carr <Roderick.Carr@climatecommission.govt.nz>
Sent: Monday, 15 February 2021 9:40 pm
To:59()@  @climatecommission.govt.nz>; Jo Hendy imatecommissio N
Subject: Re: [UNCLASSIFIED] Interests Update

Thankss 9(2)(@) @
Rod @
D

N\
From: —@cu.matecom@ss.\\}b nz> ©

Sent: Monday, February 15, 2021 9:18: 55
To: Rod Carr <Roderick.Carr@climateco govt nz>; Jo He

Subject: [UNCLASSIFIED] Interests % %
S @
Hi Both, @ %

now got bac aying they are aiming to provide a response to our interests letter

@climatecommission.govt.nz>

W climatecommission.govt.nz

[UNCLASSIFIED]
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Sent: Thursday, 25 February 2021 4:23
To: Rod Carr <Roderick.Carr@climateto
Cc: J Shaw (MIN) <J).Shaw@minists
Subject: Climate Change Com i

@climatecommission.govt.nz>

Dear Rod

Please find a r from Mini% »~reésponding to your letter dated 23 December 2020 regarding the
mhbers:

S

Office of Hon James Shaw

Minister of Climate Change | Associate Minister for the Environment (Biodiversity)
Room 2.026, Parliament House | Private Bag 18041 | Wellington 6160 |

New Zealand

The information contained in this email message is intended only for the addressee. It may be legally privileged. If you are not the intended
recipient you must not use, disclose, copy or distribute this message or the information in it as this may be unlawful. If you have received this
message in error, please email or telephone the sender immediately.

Please note information about meetings related to the Minister’s portfolios will be proactively released (this does not include personal or
constituency matters). For each meeting in scope, the summary would list: date, time (start and finish), brief description, location, who the
meeting was with, and the portfolio. If you attend a meeting with the Minister on behalf of an organisation, the name of the organisation will
be released. If you are a senior staff member at an organisation, or meet with the Minister in your personal capacity, your name may also be
released. The location of the meeting will be released, unless it is a private residence. The proactive release will be consistent with the
provisions in the Official Information Act, including privacy considerations. Under the Privacy Act 1993 you have the right to ask for a copy of
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any personal information we hold about you, and to ask for it to be corrected if you think it is wrong. If you’d like to ask for a copy of your
information, or to have it corrected, or are concerned about the release of your information in the meeting disclosure, please contact the
sender. You can read more about the proactive release policy at https://www.dia.govt.nz/Proactive-Releases#MS

62








